
NATIONAL CREDIT UNION ADMINISTRATION
W~,hln~o~, D.C. 20456

February 13, 1990 ’~’!~ "

SSIC 3320
89-1109A

Ms, Margie~.H. Muller
Maryland~State Bank Commissioner
The Brokerage - Suite 800
32 Market Place
Baltimore, MD 21202-4076

Re: Appraisal Requirements (Your
Letter of January 5, 1990)

Dear

We ~ave reviewed your letter and the attached letter from
David Porter, Assistant Attorney General, concerning the
applicabillty of Section 2-110 of the Maryland Financial
Institutions Article to Federal credit unions (FCU’s) in .......
Maryland. As you know, we also met with Mr. Porter and his
colleagues on January 10 to further discuss the issue, we
are not convlnced.of the appllcability of Section 2-110 to

Mary!an~,~y~U’s. Our opinion, as expressed, in our December
James R. Brow, ZZI!’~remalns...unchanged,~. A    .:~, ~

I:Copy oflithe letter to Mr. Brown is enclosed.

:.YCU’s.m~y mlsh to voluntarily comply with the Maryland     ,.~.: ....
:.~statute~ii~ntll all of the provisions of the Federal Financlal ~
Ref0rm,:..R~covery, and Enforcement Act (FIRREA) are            .
implemented, As you may know, the NCUA, along wi~h the other
Federal f~nanclal regulators, have beenworklng on a uniform ~
regulation to implement provislonsof FIRREA concerning
appraisal$.~ The ~CUA Board issued a proposed ~ppralsal ..... ~
regulation at their February 7, 1990 open meeting. A copy of
the propose~ rule is enclosed. We anticipate that the NCUA
Board wlll ~ssue a final rule in ~he summer of 1990. The
FIRREA requires that the financlal agencies issue final
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appraisal rules within one year of its enactment (date of
enactment - August %, 1989). The pending final rule further
supports our position on p~eemption.

Please contac~ us if .further questions arise.

Sincerely,

HATTIE M. ULAN
Associate General Counsel

Enclosures

ccl James R. Brown, III, Esq.
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James R. Brown, III Esq.
Brown & Brown, Chartered
8501La Salle Road
Towson, Maryland 21204-5980

Re:

Dear Mr. Brown=

Preemption of Maryland Statute
Real Estate Appraisal Policies
(Your November 3, 1989, Letter)

Requiring
andProcedures

You have asked whether Federal credit unions ("FCU’s")
located in Maryland must comply with Section 2-110 of the
Financial Instltu~ions Article of the Annotated Code of
~ary~and, providing that directors and officers of flnancialnstitutlons shall develop and implement written real estate
appraisal policies and procedures pertaining to the hiring
and performance of real estate appraisers. This Maryland
statu~e is preempted by Section 701.21 b 1 lii C

~egulat£ons ao not currently contain any specific appraisal
requirements. Pursuan~ ~o the Financial Institutions Reform,
Recovery and En~orcemen~ Act of 1989 ("FIRREA"), NCUA is
currently developing an appraisal reg~latlon in conjunction
with the other f~nancial institutions regulators.

ANALYSIS

Section 2-110 of the Financlal Institutions Article of ~he
Annotated Code of Maryland requires directors and officers of
financial institutions to develop =nd implement wrltnen real
estate ~ppralsal policies and.pro?e~ures pe.rtaining to the
hiring and performance of reaz esuare appraisers. The
policies mush be submitted to the State Bank Commissioner for
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review and approval. You state that the Bank Commissioner is
Uaking the position that FCU’s are subject to this statute.

Section ?01.21(b)(1)(iii!(C).of NCUA’s Regulations preemptsany state law affecting the type or amount of security and
the relation of the value of the security to the amount of
~he loan or line of credit." This provision preempts the
Maryland

Presently, appraisal standards are set by the .FCU’s board of
directors and are subject-to review by NCUA on a safety and
soundness basis. As you are aware, NCUA has also

issuedLetter to Credit Unions No. 112 regarding rea~ estate
lending. Letter No. 112 contains specific guidance on
appraisals.

~IRREA requires NCUA, in �on~unctlon with the other flnanclalnstltutions regulators, to ~ssue regulations on appraisals.
FIRREA requires that a proposed rule be issued in February,
1990, and a final rule in August, 1990. The rule will apply
no all federally-lnsured credit unions.

Sincerely,

HATTIE M. ULAN
Associate General Counsel


